
1



DRAFT 

* Requires Action
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 

be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.”

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Dr NE, Comstock Park, MI, 49321 

 DATE & TIME 

Thursday, February 15, 2024, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. CONSENT AGENDA*

A. Approval of Agenda

B. Approval of Minutes: January 18, 2024 

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: January 11, 2024 

D. Request: Kentwood (Richard L. Root) and Gaines Township change date of All Staff In-

Service 2024. 

4. FINANCE REPORTS – January 2024*

5. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – January 2024

6. OLD BUSINESS

A. Policy Manual Review: Section 1.3 Intellectual Freedom* Second Reading 

7. NEW BUSINESS

A. Memo: Community Report
B. Resolution: Beneficiary Distribution Request* First Reading 
C. Q4 Strategic Plan Report

8. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS**

10. MEETING DATES

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, March 21, 2024 – KDL Krause (Rockford) Branch, 4:30 PM

11. ADJOURNMENT*

2



DRAFT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Drive NE, Comstock Park, MI 

49321 

 DATE + TIME 

Thursday, January 18, 2024, at 4:30 PM. 

BOARD PRESENT: Tracy Chrenka, Peter Dykhuis, Andrew Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-Watts, Nicole 
Lintemuth, Carla Moyer Hotz, Christina Tazelaar and Penny Weller. 

BOARD ABSENT: None. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jennifer DeVault, Sheri Glon, Randy Goble, Kim Lindsay, Brian Mortimore, Elvia Myers, 

Kurt Stevens, Hennie Vaandrager, Ashten VanderPloeg and Lance Werner. 

GUESTS PRESENT: None. 

.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Erlewein called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. INTRODUCTION OF NEW KDL BOARD MEMBER

Chair Erlewein extended a warm welcome to Christina Tazelaar, the newest Board Member

representing Region 6, encompassing the City of Kentwood, Caledonia and Gaines Townships.

Mrs. Tazelaar provided a brief introduction and expressed her enthusiasm about serving on the

KDL Board of Trustees.

4. OATH OF OFFICE + KDL Bylaws

The Executive Director administered the Oath of Office to the Board Chair, who subsequently

administered the oath to each member of the Board. Following this, they were requested to

sign the Oath of Office document for filing.

The Board Chair reviewed the additions made to the KDL Bylaws by the Board of Trustees last

month.

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to approve the KDL Bylaws as presented.

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.

RESULT: Motion carried.

3



DRAFT 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: December 21, 2023, Open & Closed Sessions.  

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Board Minutes: November 9, 2023.  

D. Request: Cascade Township Branch request to remain open until 8:30 PM to 

accommodate Retro Arcade Program on Friday, January 26, 2024.   

Motion: Ms. Lintemuth moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

6. FINANCE REPORTS - December 2023* 

The Acting Director of Finance Kim Lindsay gave a brief overview of year-to-date financials: 

• Cash and investments as of December 31st were just over $12.4M as opposed to $13.5M 

at the end of 2022. Property tax collections for the fiscal year 2024 budget have begun 

to arrive and replenish the operating cash accounts.    

• Revenues through December amounted to $30.6M (101% of the budgeted amount) as 

compared to $28.2M for 2022.  Property taxes and investment earnings less a reduced 

amount of ERate revenue make up the increase year over year. 

• Expenditures through December amounted to $31.4M (97% of our budgeted amount) 

as compared to $28.8M for 2022.  Increased employee benefit costs (pension 

contribution and health insurance) are the areas that showed the biggest increase 

from 2022. Final year-end expenditure accruals will continue to be recorded as final 

invoices received in 2024 for goods and services received in 2023 as 2023 is closed out 

in anticipation of the annual audit. 

• The largest checks for December 2023 were:  

o Lake Michigan Credit Union for $364K for the 2024 employee HSA deposits 

o Priority Health for $152,250.57 for employee health and dental benefits 

o IP Consulting for $79,209.50 for December Colocation & final close out of 

curbside texting project 

o Ingram Library Services for $75,507.16 for collection materials 

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to receive and file the December 2023 finance reports as 
presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

  

4



DRAFT 

 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – December 2023 

Executive Director Werner shared that 2023 was a pivotal year for extraordinary services at 

KDL. In 2024, KDL will practice more authentic relationships with the municipalities and 

communities that KDL serves.   

 

Director of IT Kurt Stevens briefed the Board on the recently installed AV system in the 

Bruursema Conference Room, outlining the technological capabilities available for board 

meetings. Additionally, the Board was invited to deliberate on a later meeting date on 

whether they wished to proceed with devices for each board member.  

 

Director of Operations Jennifer DeVault presented Regional Manager I-in-Training Ashten 

VanderPloeg. Ms. VanderPloeg introduced herself to the Board and gave a summary of her 

tenure at KDL.  

 

The Board posed inquiries to the staff, and the staff provided responses. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Conflict of Interest Statements and Board Code of Ethics 
The Board received Conflict-of-Interest Statements and Board Code of Ethics forms for 
2024. They were asked to review the documents and give signed copies to Executive 

Assistant Elvia Myers for filing.  
 

B. 2024 Credit Card Agreement  

The Board received Credit Card Agreement forms for 2024 and were asked to review the 
documents and give signed copies to Executive Assistant Elvia Myers for filing. 
 

C. Policy Manual Review: Section 1.3 Intellectual Freedom*  

Trustee Dykhuis asked for the Policy Manual Review: Section 1.3 Intellectual Freedom to be 

moved to February for the Board of Trustees to have a more thorough review.  

 

D. 4th Quarter + Annual KPI Review  
Data Coordinator Sheri Glon gave a 4th Quarter + Annual KPI Review Update 

The Board posed inquiries to the staff, and the staff provided responses. 

 

E. Executive Director’s Evaluation*  

Chair Erlewein reported on his meeting with the Executive Director to discuss the Executive 

Director Evaluation 2023 and the 2024 Compensation Package.  

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to receive and file the Executive Director Evaluation 2023 and 

the 2024 Compensation Packet as discussed.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

5



DRAFT 

9. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None 

 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None 

 

11. MEETING DATES 

Regular Meeting: Thursday, February 15, 2024 – Kent District Library Service and Meeting Center, 

4:30 PM. 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved for adjournment at 6:00 PM.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Lintemuth.  

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

  

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL FOR DISTRIBUTION 

 

 

6



�����������	
�
�����
������	�
���������������������������� �!"�#�����!�$$��%�&'()��*+*��,�%����%���%���-���!��,�.��,��,�%,���/0121345�67831�9::7;10�<=>?@�A:3�BC2D1;�<EF6G?@�H:1�I8JJ8K:248�<BE?@�G83K1�L10310�<96G?@�M80:N�68O1�<GGM?@�E8PP71�EK9174Q83�<>B?@�A:R�S0724:O�<>T?@�9100U�V:C34873�<WBXWY?@�H:Q3�EKZ8CPQ4:3�<TA/G?�G8;1N83[�B48\\�/0121345�F]R10�EKG873@�F33�G83PN:72�FR21345�68N1�/80C2�<WM?��$̂��������
��
�����
�������'�_Q1�]11473P�O82�K8NN1[�4:�:0[10�84�̀5ab�RU�G83K1�L10310c� �de����
����f��g����'�E8PP71�EK9174Q83�]:h1[@�2CJJ:041[�RU�A:R�S0724:O"�4:�8JJ0:h1�4Q1�8P13[8�82�J0121341[�i�jklmkn�opqqmrst�(̂�u��������f
�����	�
�'�_Q101�O101�3:�vC1247:32�\0:]�]1]R102c�ŵ���	�����������'�_Q101�O101�3:�JCRN7K�K:]]1342c�x̂����
����f��������'�E8PP71�EK9174Q83�]:h1[@�2CJJ:041[�RU�A:R�S0724:O@�4:�8JJ0:h1�4Q1�R:80[�]73C412�\0:]�Z:h1]R10�̀@�ybya�i�Kpqqmrst�ẑ�f���������
��
�'�8?�Z:h1]R10�{�61K1]R10�V7383K78N2�83[�MQ1K;�A1P724105�A:3�BC2D1;�]:h1[@�2CJJ:041[�RU�E8PP71�EK9174Q83�4:�8JJ0:h1�4Q1�Z:h1]R10�{�61K1]R10�V7383K78N2�82�J0121341[�i�jklmkn�opqqmrst�|̂��
�������}��
��
��8?�G83K1�2J:;1�8R:C4�4Q1�1h8NC847:3�J0:K122�\:0�M80:N�82�4Q1�M::J10847h1�[701K4:0c�R?�G83K1�8N2:�2J:;1�8R:C4�4Q1�2CRiK:]]744112�:\�4Q1�R:80[�83[�4Q170�8JJ:734112c�K?�G83K1�73\:0]1[�4Q1�R:80[�4Q84�4Q1�9134�M:C34U�M:]]7227:3�[7[�3:4�01i8JJ:734�BQ70N1U�S0CC021]8@�4Q101\:01�2Q1�72�3:�N:3P10�83�1~i:\\7K7:�]1]R10�:\�4Q72�R:80[c��̂���
���
}��
��
��8?�M80:N�2J:;1�8R:C4�4Q1�311[�\:0�]:01�K:32724134�K:]]C37K847:3@�83[�13K:C08P1[�1h10U:31�4:�018[�4Q1�]73C412�83[�01J:042�4Q84�GGM�JC42�:C4c�R?�M80:N�8N2:�13K:C08P1[�1h10U:31�4:�48;1�J804�73�4Q1�8[h:K8KU�[8U�K:]73P�CJc��K?�M80:N�8N2:�Q7PQN7PQ41[�83�1h134�4Q84�_GZ�72�Q:2473P�:3�08K1�83[�13K:C08P1[�84413[83K1c�&̂����������������
��
���8?�Z:31�$)̂� ��	�����������'������$$̂� 	�
�����	�
��������'�8?��67831�9::7;10���=1007K;�72�\7372Q73P�CJ�4Q1�\7024�JQ821�:\�4Q170�013:h847:3�83[�Q:J73P�4:�R1�[:31�O74Q73�8�]:34Qc�M:]JN141[�013:h847:32�J0:�1K41[�RU�B1J41]R10c�R?�A:3�BC2D1;���Z:31�K?�H:1�I8JJ8K:248���MC00134NU�K:3[CK473P�8�311[2�822122]134�83[�4Q13�O7NN�214�P:8N2@�\:KC273P�:3�4Q1�8331~�RC7N[73P�4Q84�=8K;N1U�:O32c�[?�E8PP71�EK9174Q83���E8PP71�2Q801[�31O2�:3�BJ073P�G8;1�2�013:h847:32�83[�8N2:�2Q801[�8�R::;�K8NN1[����msn�l���mn��k���l���pl��p��RU�E:37K8�TCD]83c�1?�A:R�S0724:O���Z:31�\?�9100U�V:C34873���9100U�2Q801[�4Q84�WBXWY�72�8N2:�[11J�73�013:h847:32c�P?�H:Q3�EKZ8CPQ4:3���Z:31@�RC4�Q8JJU�4:�211�1h10U:31�73�J102:3�Q?�G83K1�L10310���96G�72�K8NN73P�yby��4Q1�U180�:\�P08474C[1�83[�72�\:KC273P�:3�4Q1�N:31N73122�1J7[1]7Kc�96G�72�8N2:�\:KC273P�:3�12J:042c�$�̂� �����������g'�_QC02[8U@�V1R0C80U��"�84�̀5ab�8c]c�84�9134�672407K4�G7R080U�B10h7K1�M13410c�

��������������

7



���� ����	
����������������������������� �!!�"����#$�%�#�&"' ��(�������)��"�����*+,-�.�/01203�45662789��%� !���:�;;$� �#�'�����#$��<�#�"���=�'���
�������������>

8



 

 

February 5, 2024 
 
KDL Board of Trustees 
Kent District Library 
814 West River Center Drive NE 
Comstock Park, Michigan 49321 
 
 
Dear KDL Board Members, 
 
The Kentwood (Richard L. Root) and Gaines Township branches have typically held their regional all 
staff in-service day on Veterans Day (November 11th) and have remained open on election day. With 
both branches being polling locations and in efforts to minimize traffic and congestion at both branches 
the Kentwood (Richard L. Root) and Gaines Township branches are requesting to change the date they 
are closed to the public for the region’s all staff in-service day from Monday, November 11th, 2024 to 
Tuesday, November 5th, 2024.  Staff would gather at the Kentwood (Richard L. Root) branch as usual, 
mainly utilizing the staff parking area and leaving the main parking lot open for voters. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Kiosha Jeltema 
Regional Manager I – Kentwood (Richard L. Root) and Gaines Township Branches 
 

9



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended January 31

2024 2023

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.500% $4,048,695.54 0.100% $4,095,786.88

3.289% $2,369,846.89 1.004% $6,511,928.56

3.774% $58,059.70 1.832% $56,367.01

$10,732,394.00 $11,629,370.00

$2,043,229.62 $22,293,452.45

$203,684.11

$19,252,225.75

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Huntington Liquidity Portal

Caledonia UYL Investment

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 

18.38%

Investment Account

29.21%

Pooled Funds 

.25%

Atlanta Capital

52.16%  

Checking Account

20.81%     

Investment Account

12.18%

Pooled Funds

.30%Atlanta Capital 

55.16%  

Liquidity Portal

10.50%

CAL UYL Investment

1.05%

10



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended January 31

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2023 Actual 2023 YTD Revenues 45.9%

2024 Actual 2024 YTD Revenues 42.7%

2024 Budgeted

2023 YTD Expenditures 11.5%

Expenditures 2024 YTD Expenditures 12.7%

2023 Actual

2024 Actual

2024 Budgeted 30,595,677$                              

13,908,037$                              

12,164,716$                              

28,484,689$                              

3,742,833$                                

3,875,446$                                

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2023
Actual

2024
Actual

2024
Budgeted

2023
Actual

2024
Actual

2024
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

2023 YTD Revenues 2024 YTD Revenues 2024 YTD Expenditures 2024 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2023

Actual

2024

Actual

2024

Budgeted

2023

Actual

2024

Actual

2024

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

2023 YTD Revenues 2024 YTD Revenues 2024 YTD Expenditures 2024 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Gaines + Kentwood 
Regional Manager I Kiosha Jeltema volunteered at Village Water Filters. She spent her time assembling
kits to be sent around the world that will ensure access to clean water.  Regional Manager II Angela Culp
spent time at Kids’ Food Basket.  She now receives weekly communications from the organization and
plans to volunteer in her personal time in the future. 

Assistant Branch Librarian Alicia Peckham enjoyed her time at The Bridge of Arbor Circle. She was
welcomed by a group of teens and learned that a specific teen liked to help in the kitchen, as it provided
an atmosphere of calm. Branch Librarian Audrey Barker volunteered at the Lions Club. Not only did her
group have an amazing time filled with laughter, but they were also able to sort through boxes of glasses
for people in other countries. 

These volunteer opportunities were wonderful ways for staff to serve the community and learn about
the many resources available in our area. 

Director's Report
January 2024

EMyers
Typewritten Text
25



Kelloggsville + Wyoming  

All but two staff members participated in volunteering during Honoring the Life and Legacy of MLK week.
Of the staff that participated in 2023, half of them returned to the same location to volunteer while the
other half tried something new. Staff were excited to talk about their experiences, they shared pictures on
our social Teams platform, and were grateful for the opportunity to volunteer.

Krause, Nelson + Spencer   

Krause Branch Assistant Branch Librarian Tina Cornwell  volunteered at Kids Food Basket. She volunteered
there as part of KDL’s MLK Day observance in 2022 and enjoyed it so much that she continues to volunteer
periodically on her own. Tina says that she really feels like she makes a difference in the greater
community when volunteering at Kids Food Basket. 
 
Regional Manager I Jennifer German, once again partnered with the City of Rockford to help plan
Rockford’s third annual MLK Day program, which was held at the Rockford Community Cabin on January
15. The speaker this year was Mark Washington, the first African American City Manager of the City of Grand
Rapids. 

EMyers
Typewritten Text
26



FAYE HARBISON 
PLAINFIELD 
Nominated by Rebecca Behrens
INCLUSIVE
"I had some unusual things come in delivery on Thursday. Faye was patient and helpful as I interrupted her
with my many questions about what to do with the various items. Thank you, Faye!” 

 
Nominated by: Susan Erhardt 
Helpful 
"Faye offered to flex her schedule so she could attend a family outreach at York Creek apartments. Not
everyone is willing to work two nights in a row, so I really appreciate her willingness to help out.” 

 
Nominated by: Johanna Boyle 
Positive 
"We had an impromptu request from a reporter today to do a story on the thermal cameras in the Beyond
Books collection. Not having any on the shelf to show them, I went on a desperate hunt to track one down.
Faye was willing to bring in the one she had checked out so we could use it for the interview. This will give
viewers a better idea of what is available in the collection. Thanks for being willing to bring the camera in!
It made my afternoon a lot easier!” 

 
Nominated by: Penni Zurgable 
Authentic 
“Faye has been extremely helpful advocating to our Friends of the Library to fund the projects we would
like to begin in our branch. She convinced them to update our bookstore / magazine room. She will be
presenting the quote for plant service in the branch this week.” 

AMBER CALDERSON
HELPFUL
GRANDVILLE
Nominated by Heather Blake 
"Today was a very interesting Sunday at our branch. It had many challenging situations and unique
problems. I’m recovering from ankle surgery and am just back to work with a lot of restrictions. Amber was
incredibly helpful and patient with me today. I appreciate her!" 

Katie Kudos
January 2024

EMyers
Typewritten Text
27



PHILLIP SAWYER
ALTO TOWNSHIP 
Nominated By: Catherine Gutowski 
Authentic 
“Phil started a program called “Loose Parts Play” for Friday mornings to draw patrons in. Phil is doing an
awesome job with this venture! He literally gets down to the patron’s level and interacts with them during
the event be it on the floor in a chair. Patrons come in during the week disappointed that it’s not the
correct day for “Loose Parts Play with Mr. Phil”. Phenomenal job, Phil, and keep up the good work!” 
 
Nominated By: David Palma 
Inclusive 
“Phil did a lot of work refreshing out the Adult Non-Fiction at the Alto Township branch this week. I really
appreciate his work in this area as will the Alto’s patrons.” 

Katie Kudos
January 2024 cont. 

EMyers
Typewritten Text
28



Highlights 
Created an onboard packet to train each new volunteer that creates a user account and has an
approved background check. 
Developed a Department Responsibility packet for reference and clarity of the role and positions filled. 
Hosted off site volunteer opportunities for Grand Valley State University Thompson Scholar Students
and ROI Design Company. 
Tallied Spartan Nash receipts for Direct Your Dollars that resulted in $2,000 reimbursement. 
Developed the Ambassador Program and trained 17 ambassador volunteers to promote and care for
the KDL values and atmosphere by partaking in impact challenges and secret shopping. 
Seed Library- 64 volunteers that accumulated 312 volunteer hours to deliver 6,464 seed packets to 20
branches and the Bookmobile.
Teen Crew- 249 participants that accumulated 3,870 hours. 
Gala-assisted with the planning and overseeing of 12 volunteers with guest registration, auction, and
sales. 
Alliance-hosted bi-monthly meetings and the Friends Appreciation Luncheon for 98 members 
Write Michigan Reviewers -151 volunteers that accumulated 800 hours of reviewing time. 
MLK Motivate! This year the decision was made to enhance the opportunity with a weeklong
recognition that was developed into “Honoring the Life and Legacy of Reverand Martin Luther King
series, and staff participation (84) with 22 different organization volunteer events. 

Volunteer Services
Featured Department

In 2023, the KDL Volunteer Department was enhanced by a reevaluation of the accountability and
responsibilities it serves to the community. To align the department with necessary but not recognized
needs, the department restructured the VolunteerHub system (saved $7,000 with new contract)
background checks, Friends of the Library members, specialized events, and community networking. This
was all accomplished in a year with the active support of Deb Schultz, KDL Volunteer Coordinator. The
following information shared are the 2023 highlights, accomplishments, and growth within the Volunteer
Department. 

EMyers
Typewritten Text
29



Volunteer Services
Featured Department

Accomplishments 
 Acquired J Schanke from the well know PBS show “Life in Bloom” for a flower presentation at the
Grandville Branch (March 2023).
Volunteer accommodations for international patrons in branches. (Brazil and Ukraine). 
Seed Library Presentation at the LLC continuing education classroom. (November 2023) .
Curate a Paul Collins original artwork piece titled “Road Towards Equality.” (December 2023).
Planning and Production of the MLK Motivate! Week. 

Growth and Development 
Adult volunteers that claimed events-270 with 2,490
hours. 
Teen volunteers-278 with 3,563 hours. 
Active volunteers –795 (has participated in an event
over the last two years)
Total registered volunteers -2,355
Weekly Volunteers -nine volunteers have assignments
at Walker, Cascade, Caledonia, East Grand Rapids,
Plainfield, and Walker to provide basic support to staff
with cleaning, sanitizing, dusting, appearance of
branch and shelving units, and craft prep work. 
Community Service-Developed relationships with
court liaison for three volunteers that have
accumulated 278 hours. 
Points of Light Conference- (June 2023)
Volunteer Bootcamp for Managing-(May 2023) 

 The pictures are of staff that took the
opportunities to volunteer during the
MLK Motivate! week of service during
January 15-19, 2024

EMyers
Typewritten Text
30



Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, March 21,  2024 
4:30 PM 
KD Krause Memorial Branch 

Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, April 18, 2024 
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center 

Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, May 16, 2024 
4:30 PM 
KDL Grandville Branch

Upcoming Meetings 

Upcoming Meetings
+ Dates of Interest 

KDL Pension Meeting 
February 21, 2024 
1:00 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center 

PLA 2024 Conference 
April 3-5, 2024
Columbus, Ohio

Dates of Interest 



32



33



34



35



 

36



 

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38

https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575397
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9944318
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8673808
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8673808
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3782979
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3782979
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575425
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575425
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9350882
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9173603
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C941827
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C990842
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C948474
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C951221
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C998725
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C951219
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C968069
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C934495
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867278
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C872369
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C872369
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C979009
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C978015
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C990842
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C941811
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C941811
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C997925
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C948474
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C992213
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C989993
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C951238
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C990514
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9254594
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9351086
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9351086
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9350882
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384649
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9352710
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9768977
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9852641
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/10012377
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9476452
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9476452


  

STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 
February 2024 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Alpine Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Grandville Part-time 

Collection Services Assistant – Service Center Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids (2 positions) Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Plainfield Part-time 

 
 

 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(MARCH) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Diane Damuth Human Resources 20 years 

Josh Bernstein Grandville / Byron Twp. 16 years 

Brad Allen Collection Services 14 years 

Melody Kastanek Englehardt 14 years 

Hollis Goulet East Grand Rapids 13 years 

Laura Youells Krause / Nelson Twp / Spencer Twp 10 years 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Katie Fox Webb 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Administrative Assistant - 
Administration 

January 22 

Holly Cotter 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– East Grand Rapids 

Assistant Branch Librarian Sub February 5 

Kelsey Little 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Plainfield 

Administrative Assistant – 
Project Management Office 

February 5 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Mary Oosterbaan Assistant Branch Librarian – Grandville January 25 

Courtney DeLongchamp Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids February 9 

Reilly Brady Governmental Fund Accounting Specialist – Finance February 16 

Patricia Wells Branch Librarian – Gaines Township March 23 

39



EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(MARCH) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Janine Elliott Collection Services 9 years 

Dave Palma Englehardt / Alto 9 years 

Autumn Shattuck Kentwood 9 years 

Jennifer Furner Kentwood 8 years 

Barbara Schantz Walker 8 years 

Jared Seigel Cascade 8 years 

Anne Bartsch Alpine 7 years 

Jacquelyn Boss Wyoming 7 years 

Jacqueline Jurgens Patron Services 7 years 

Adam Marth Wyoming 7 years 

Sara Proano-Motta Community Engagement 6 years 

Brittany Zuehlke Walker 6 years 

Rachel Groters Grandville 5 years 

Jacob Hop Wyoming 5 years 

Amy Richardson Englehardt 4 years 

Laura DeJong Plainfield 3 years 

Taylor Docter Spencer Twp. 3 years 

Amra Hrnjic Kentwood 3 years 

Abby Lynn Patron Services 3 years 

Kristen Vandussen Sub Pool 3 years 

Madelyn Besaw Englehardt 2 years 

Sidra Elvey Walker 2 years 

Brock Gabbert Collection Services 2 years 

Lauren Hagerman Tekelly Programming 2 years 

Jacob Huber Kentwood 2 years 

Cari Kovach Sub Pool 2 years 

Janelle Waugh Finance 2 years 

Luke Ayuso Building Maintenance 1 year 

Mariangela McNair Sub Pool 1 year 

  

40



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2024 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  
 
 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 TRACY 
CHRENKA 

PETER 
DYKHUIS 

ANDREW 
ERLEWEIN 

SHERRI 
GILREATH 

WATTS 

NICOLE 
LINTEMUTH 

 

CARLA 
MOYER 
HOTZ 

CHRISTINA 
TAZELAAR 

PENNY 
WELLER 

January 18, 2024 X X X X X X X X 

February 15, 2024         

March 21, 2024         

April 18, 2024         

May 16, 2024         

June 20, 2024         

July 18, 2024         

August 15, 2024         

September 19, 2024         

October 17, 2024         

November 21, 2024         

December 19, 2024         

41



 

January 2024 EDITS 

 

42



 

SECTION 1: COLLECTION AND REFERENCE 

  

KDL Policy 1.1   Materials Selection 

KDL Policy 1.2   Gifts 

KDL Policy 1.3  Intellectual Freedom EDITS  

KDL Policy 1.4   Collection Maintenance  

KDL Policy 1.5   Reference + Research 

KDL Policy 1.6   Shared Collection 

KDL Policy 1.7  Inter-Library Loan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43

https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Section1
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#MaterialsSelection
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Gifts
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#IntellectualFreedom
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#CollectionMaintenance
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#ReferenceResearch
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#SharedCollection
https://usc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?new=1&ui=en%2DUS&rs=en%2DUS&wdorigin=OFFICECOM-WEB.START.NEW-INSTANT&wdprevioussessionsrc=HarmonyWeb&wdprevioussession=5397ed0c-9c53-4409-96dd-b564bf9c32b6&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&wdodb=1&hid=8BB200A1-A012-4000-9D24-A9068C04F861&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fkentdistrictlibrary-my.sharepoint.com%2Fpersonal%2Femyers_kdl_org%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F7177e135520f421fb32883452f10513a&wdhostclicktime=1704984303775&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&usid=247d2ed7-3e92-4ea0-9854-b0f1893997f6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#InterLibraryLoan


KDL Policy 1.3 

Intellectual Freedom 

LAST REVISED 6.15.2023 

  

Kent District Library supports the principles of intellectual freedom adopted by the American Library 

Association and stated in the Library Bill of Rights and the first amendment rights as outlined in the US 

Constitution.  

Kent District Library upholds the principles of intellectual freedom as a basic right that is guaranteed by 

the First Amendment of the United States Constitution. By virtue of the Fourteenth Amendment, the 

First Amendment's constitutional right of free speech and intellectual freedom also applies to state and 

local governments. Government agencies and government officials are forbidden from regulating or 

restricting speech or other expression based on its content or viewpoint.  

• It is the right of every individual to seek and receive information from all points of view without 

content restriction. It provides free access to expressions of ideas where any and all sides of a 

question, cause or movement may be explored, including presentation of all points of view on 

current and historical issues. 

• Materials should not be proscribed or removed because of partisan or doctrinal disapproval.  

• The exchange of information and ideas are supported and facilitated in a democratic society, 

and with respect to each individual's rights to privacy and choice. 

• A person's right to use a library should not be denied or abridged because of origin, age, 

background, or views. 

• The core purpose of the Library is to further all people by enriching lives through access and 

personal discovery for all. 

 

 

The Library assures equal access, without censorship or scrutiny, to all library resources by patrons 

within the constraints of Michigan law. Patrons are free to select or reject for themselves any item in the 

collection. Individual or group prejudice about a particular item or type of material in the collection may 

not preclude its use by others. Parents or legal guardians have the right and the responsibility to restrict 

the access of their children to library resources. Parents or legal guardians who do not want their 

children to have access to certain library services, materials, or facilities shall should so advise their 

children. Library staff cannot lack legal authority to assume the role of parents or the functions of 

parental authority. 

 

 

44



 

 

Memo 
 

 
 
Re: FY 2024- Community Report Presentations 

 
Question: Should the Kent District Library (KDL) change the approach and offer to make annual 
presentations before each municipality, to seek more two-way dialog or an opportunity for the 
municipality to pass on the offer? 

 
Background: During my tenure as Executive Director of KDL (and before) we have requested to visit 

participating municipalities to speak during public comment or during a special presentation to 

deliver KDL's community report. There are two participating municipalities that have requested that 
we not be present (Oakfield and Grand Rapids Twps.). Presentations to the other municipalities are 
typically short, cordial and appreciative. Every municipality in the KDL service area receives copies of 

the annual community report. 
 

Recommendation: In the spirit of building relationships with municipalities, we believe that the best 

approach is to continue to ask the municipalities if they would like us to schedule time for us to 
present the annual community report by a letter with the community reports are mailed to the 
municipalities. The difference is that the request is delivered in the form of a letter with copies of the 
annual report instead of an email. We would start by asking if they would like a presentation. If they 

would, do they prefer the historic format of the presentation or change to a conversational format 
with an agenda (created by KDL and the municipality). 
 

Rationale:  We enjoy excellent day-to-day relationships with the municipalities due to the efforts of 
our Regional Managers, so the annual presentations often do not offer anything new to share or 
discuss. This recommendation creates a more collaborative approach to annual presentations and 

nurtures our relationships with municipalities. If they do not want an annual presentation but have 
questions, we can respond with a call, email or other meeting. This recommendation is very close to 
the current practice, but the difference being that we would 1) inquire about an annual presentation 

via letter and have them reach out to the KDL Executive Assistant to schedule as opposed to reaching 
out to them via email, and 2) provide options which include entirely passing on the annual 
presentation. 

 

Next steps if the Board approves the recommended course of action: The Board Chair in 
conjunction with the Leadership Team and Executive Assistant will develop a framework and timeline 
for the process of Annual Report requests for presentation and present it as an informational item in 

the March Board Packet.  
 

45



RESOLUTION 
Beneficiary Distribution Request 

 
 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 

at the Kent District Library – Service Center, on February 15, 2024, at 4:30 PM. 

 
The meeting was called to order by: _____________________. 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Article II, Section 2.3, of the Kent District Library Board of Trustees Bylaws, states that it is 

the duty of the Board of Trustees to employ a Library Director who will be administratively responsible 

for executing the policies of the Library Board and for directing all phases of the operation of the 

District Library; and 

 

WHEREAS the Library Board defines acceptance of financial contributions on behalf of the District 

Library as an expressed function of the Library Director. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

The Library Board hereby specifically names Lance Werner the Library Director and has been given him 

authority to perform necessary duties and execute financial transactions for the Kent District Library in 

accordance with the Board’s Bylaws, the Kent District Library’s finance policies and specifically for the 

financial gift to be received from decedent estate of Sherri L. Johnson.  

  

THE FORGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by ________________________ 

and seconded by ________________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: _____ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_________________.  The following voted nay: ____________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________. The 

Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on the 15th of February 2024. 

  

REOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

SS. 

COUNTY OF KENT 

  

46



 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 

of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on February 

15, 2024 and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to 

and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that 

the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act.  

  

 

Dated:  February 15, 2024 

 

 

 

    

Andrew Erlewein, KDL Board Chair         Carla Moyer Hotz, KDL Board Secretary  

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54


	February 2024 Board of Trustees Cover Page
	02.15.2024 Board of Trustee Agenda
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	01.18.2024 - Board Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	LLC Board Meeting Minutes 01.11.2024
	2024 Gaines and Kentwood In-service Date Change Request
	January 2024 Financials
	January 2024 Check Register - Board Report
	January 2024 Director's  Report
	December 2023 for January 2024 Monthly Projects Report
	January 2024 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries Feb 2024
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	February 2024


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE 02.2024
	January 2024 Policy Manual 1.3 Edits
	Memo Community Report
	Resolution Template -Beneficiary Distribution Request
	RESOLUTION
	Beneficiary Distribution Request


	Q4 2023 Strategic Plan Update



